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          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.  My

          3  name is Christine Quinn, I am the Chair of the

          4  Health Committee.  I want to thank everybody for

          5  coming today.

          6                 We have been joined, so far, by two

          7  members of the Health Committee from Brooklyn,

          8  Council Member Kendall Stewart, and Council Member

          9  Al Vann.  Council Member Helen Sears is running a

         10  little late, she has called in, and Council Member

         11  Phil Reed, is out of the country, on vacation in

         12  Ghana, so he has given his regards, when he left me

         13  a message saying that he wouldn't be able to be

         14  here.  Again, I want to thank everyone for being

         15  here.

         16                 This is our second hearing on three

         17  pieces of legislation, which deal with the need and

         18  the desire to increase and expand the availability

         19  of emergency contraception to women in New York

         20  City.  And, as I said, there is three pieces of

         21  legislation, and let me just briefly give an over

         22  view of them.

         23                 Last year the City Council Health

         24  Committee, our staff was reached out to by a number

         25  of choice and family planning advocates.  They came
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          2  to us with the issue that emergency contraception is

          3  not well known in this country, unfortunately, is

          4  not well utilized in this City or this country,

          5  because of that lack of knowledge.  And, in

          6  addition, they had serious concerns about what the

          7  availability of emergency contraception in a number

          8  of different places was.

          9                 One of the concerns that they raised,

         10  was that they were hearing from women, that they

         11  worked with, that emergency contraception was not as

         12  a rule, easy to get even if you had a prescription

         13  when you went to your local pharmacy.

         14                 In response to that concern, our

         15  Investigations Division, under leadership of Council

         16  Member Eric Gioia, initiated a survey, where female

         17  members of the investigation staff, called

         18  pharmacies through out the five boroughs, a mix of

         19  pharmacies, from what your kind of what you might

         20  think of as your mom and pop pharmacies, to your

         21  more typical chain pharmacies, to call to see if the

         22  pharmacies carried either of the two FDA approved

         23  types of emergency contraception, Prevent (phonetic)

         24  and Plan B.

         25                 What we found in that investigation,
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          2  and there are a few copies of that investigation

          3  around, if people would like it, was that only about

          4  50 percent of the pharmacies in the City carried

          5  emergency contraception, and in some boroughs, most

          6  notably, Queens, it was as low as 30 percent.

          7                 In response to that, the one of the

          8  pieces of legislation, would require pharmacies that

          9  do not carry emergency contraception to post signage

         10  noting that they do not carry emergency

         11  contraception, so women, if they are ever in the

         12  position where they need emergency contraception,

         13  which must be taken in a very time sensitive, 72

         14  hours after unprotected intercourse, they would know

         15  where, close to their home, they could or could not

         16  access it.

         17                 The second piece of legislation seeks

         18  to require that the City's Sexual Transmitted

         19  Disease Clinics, provide emergency contraception to

         20  women who go to those clinics seeking it.

         21                 The third piece of legislation, would

         22  require all hospitals, those that have memorandums

         23  of understanding with the City as it relates to our

         24  EMS and 9- 1- 1 system, or hospitals which have

         25  financial contracts with the City, that they be
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          2  required to offer emergency contraception, when

          3  medically appropriate to all women who go to their

          4  emergency departments who have been the victims of

          5  rape, and are seeking emergency contraception.

          6                 As I said, this is our second

          7  hearing.  At our first hearing we had a number,

          8  numerous, family planning choice and sexual

          9  advocates speak, as well as people, who work with

         10  women who have been sexually assaulted in the City,

         11  all testifying in support of this bill.

         12                 Following our hearings, we have had a

         13  number of discussions with hospital associations,

         14  advocates, the Administration, in an attempt to

         15  improve the bills, that is why there are some "A"

         16  versions today, in the hope that we can come up with

         17  legislation that would have broad support.

         18                 Today, we are going to hear from the

         19  Administration, they did testified, will I should

         20  say, that the Department of Health testified, as

         21  they are again, today, at the first hearing. The

         22  Department of Consumer Affairs, which is the, who

         23  would be required to enforce the posting bill, has

         24  declined the invitation to testify at the first

         25  hearing and at this hearing.
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          2                   We did have a meeting with them,

          3  they were not interested in negotiating, but we did

          4  meet.  So, if you saw us, we were not negotiating,

          5  we were just meeting, but, we were not been able to

          6  come to a position on that the bill that the

          7  Department of Consumer Affairs feels that they feel

          8  they can be supportive of.

          9                 So, today, we are going to hear, as I

         10  said, from the Commissioner of the Department of

         11  Health and Mental Hygiene, and a number of

         12  advocates, and then take a vote on these pieces of

         13  legislation.

         14                 We are going to call on Commissioner

         15  Tom Frieden, Commissioner of the Department of

         16  Health and Mental Hygiene.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Thank you very

         18  much.  My name is Dr. Tom Frieden, I am the

         19  Commissioner of Health and Mental Hygiene.  With me

         20  today, are Deborah Kaplan, who is the acting

         21  Assistant Commissioner for the Bureau of Maternal

         22  Infant and Reproductive Health, and Steve Rubin, who

         23  is the Deputy Director of the Bureau of FTD Control.

         24                 Dr. Weisfuse, the Deputy Commissioner

         25  for Disease, testified on December 16th, and I would
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          2  like to reiterate, that the Department fully

          3  supports the goals of the sponsors of these bills,

          4  to make emergency contraception more readily

          5  available to women at risk for unintended pregnancy.

          6

          7                 We want to point out that there are

          8  practical and legal questions with the legislation,

          9  but we also want to note that we fully support the

         10  wider goal of increasing access to emergency

         11  contraception.  The unfortunate reality, is that we

         12  do not have the resources to do all that we would

         13  like to do.

         14                 With regard to Intro. 281- A, the

         15  City's Law Department, has advised us, that there

         16  are legal and technical problems that persist with

         17  this bill.  Specifically, State protocol for acute

         18  care of patients reporting sexual assault, issued by

         19  the State Department of Health, allows hospital

         20  emergency rooms the option of providing emergency

         21  contraception, which I shall refer to as, EC, for

         22  the remainder of this testimony, directly or making

         23  arrangements for the patient to receive services

         24  from another provider.

         25                 Intro. 281- A, attempts to use the
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          2  vehicle of City contracts, in either agreements, to

          3  eliminate this choice allowed by the protocol, and

          4  require hospitals to provide services directly.

          5  Although, we might support the concept, this would

          6  violate State Law, governing the City's procurement

          7  process, and I know that the Council are concerned,

          8  without cumbersome, the procurement process already

          9  is within the City.

         10                 The State's High Court, does not

         11  allow government contracts to contain preconditions,

         12  not linked to the interest and embodied in the

         13  competitive bid process, which are to abstain best

         14  work at the lowest possible price and to prevent

         15  favoritism, improvidence, fraud, and corruption.

         16                 It is my understanding that

         17  legislation is pending in the State Legislature,

         18  that would require EC to be provided to sexual

         19  assault victims in emergency departments, which may

         20  be a more effective way of addressing this issue.

         21                 Furthermore, I note that some states

         22  allow pharmacists, and this is an important point,

         23  some states allow pharmacists to dispense EC based

         24  on a standing doctor's order. This is a measure,

         25  that is taken by New York State, would greatly
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          2  increase access to, and use of, to emergency

          3  contraception at no cost.

          4                 Although, we are not commenting on

          5  the pharmacy signage issues, I would just note, as a

          6  interested observer, that it would be, perhaps, more

          7  effective, if the availability of emergency

          8  contraception were widely noted rather then the lack

          9  of availability.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Commissioner,

         11  just so you know, that on the State point, we have

         12  been working with the Chair of that Committee, I

         13  want to say Council member,  Assembly Member

         14  Gottfried, actually, he has even picked up some of

         15  our bills, and made them State versions as well, and

         16  we are in the process of drafting a resolution as

         17  part of that.  So that any efforts that the Council

         18  and the Department can do jointly in lobbing for

         19  that, we would very much like to.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  We would be

         21  happy to.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  We agree that is,

         23  would be very, very helpful as well.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Intro. 285- A,

         25  which would make EC available in DOHMH STD Clinics,
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          2  is a concept that I support.  You may remember that

          3  I mentioned during previous hearings, that providing

          4  family planning services in our STD Clinics, is one

          5  of the number of ideas that I intend to pursue, that

          6  we are actively pursuing.

          7                 However, establishing a new service

          8  must be carefully planned, and will involve

          9  additional costs, if it is to be successful.  For

         10  some time now, we have preparing to implement the

         11  program, to determine the most effective and cost

         12  efficient way to provide this service at our STD

         13  Clinics.  We have chosen to begin the program in the

         14  Jamaica STD Clinic, in Queens, because this clinic

         15  has a high volume of female patients of child

         16  bearing age.

         17                 The Departments Bureau of STD Control

         18  and Bureau of Maternal Infant and Reproduction

         19  Health, has spent the past several months preparing

         20  this project.  It was necessary to research the

         21  safest and the most effective medication, revise

         22  protocols, and medical records, augment and update

         23  educational and hotline material, and train staff.

         24                 Just last week, we got good news, we

         25  received approval from the CDC, to use Public Health

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  Pricing, a Federal Purchasing Program, which gives

          3  us access to the lowest prices to allow us to

          4  purchase Plan B, the most effective of the emergency

          5  contraceptives.  Implementation at one site will

          6  give us a better idea of how much full

          7  implementation city wide is would cost.

          8                 To implement a program to provide

          9  emergency contraception, in a responsible and

         10  effective way, STD Clinics must enhance current

         11  services.  Before, prescribing emergency

         12  contraception, or any prescription drug, a patient

         13  history must be taken to insure that there are no

         14  contraindications.  This may include on site urine

         15  pregnancy testing, and reviewing the tests results

         16  with the patient.  Patients must also be carefully

         17  counseled on how to take each dose, how to take

         18  anti- emetics, if needed, on re- dosing, should

         19  vomiting occur, and on the need for follow up.

         20                 In addition, every women should be

         21  counseled for long term contraceptive needs, and

         22  referred for Family Planning Services.  Patients

         23  seeking emergency contraception, generally represent

         24  contraceptives failures, or lack of contraceptive

         25  use. To be truly effective in preventing unintended
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          2  pregnancy, our program must try to insure that an

          3  effective contraception is addressed with female

          4  patients.

          5                 Nor can we, or will we, provide

          6  emergency contraception only as a stand alone

          7  service.  We are a clinical service provider.  If a

          8  female patient request emergency contraception, we

          9  are legally and ethically bound to offer at least a

         10  minimal level of service.  Including HIV counselling

         11  and testing, Pap smear, STD screening, and referral

         12  for family planning, among other services.  Failing

         13  to do so, would not only be wrong, it would also

         14  expose the City to unacceptable financial liability.

         15  Imagine, for example, a women who is not provided

         16  with these services and develops avoidable HIV

         17  infection, fetal cervix cancer, or infertility, that

         18  is irreversible.  She would have a strong case

         19  against New York City, with legal liability in the

         20  multiple millions of dollars.  But, money is not the

         21  key point here.  The key point here, is that it

         22  would be wrong to provide some optimal services in

         23  our clinics, and I will not allow this to occur.

         24                 Currently, our standard clinical

         25  visit takes about 30 to 40 minutes per female
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          2  patient.  It would take an additional 15 minutes to

          3  see a patient for family planning counselling and

          4  referral.  This may seem like a small increase, but

          5  it is not. Increasing visit time by 35 to 55

          6  percent, means reducing the number of patients who

          7  can be seen by the same proportion.  Since all of

          8  our clinics are operating at capacity, providing

          9  this service would require additional physician

         10  personnel, and public health advisors at most of our

         11  clinics.  The alternative is that clinics would have

         12  to start turning patients away.

         13                 Our best estimate of the annual cost

         14  of adding this service in responsible manner, in all

         15  ten of our STD Clinics, is approximately $1 million

         16  per year as a recurring cost.  This cost is based on

         17  the need to hire additional full- time physicians

         18  for the highest volume clinics, part- time

         19  physicians for smaller clinics where female visits

         20  make up at least a third of the total patients seen.

         21    Additional clinic staff are needed to accommodate

         22  additional contact time, between clinician and

         23  patient, keeping in mind that not only does that

         24  require a clinician, but also a chaperon in the

         25  room, as well as in increase visits that we
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          2  anticipate in response to the availability of a new

          3  service.  After we begin the program in Jamaica, we

          4  will have a better sense of the actually costs, and

          5  I frankly state that these costs may be higher, or

          6  maybe lower, then what we have estimated.  It is our

          7  best guess.

          8                 It is simply irresponsible to propose

          9  a new service, as important as that service is, at a

         10  time when we are forced to reduce services in other

         11  critical areas.  The Department has already

         12  sustained cuts of more then $100 million, and as

         13  this Committee is well aware, the budget proposed

         14  for Fiscal 2004, contemplates even more cuts in many

         15  programs and services across the agency.

         16                 These latest cuts are being proposed,

         17  because there are simply no more cushion.  This is

         18  not merely a zero- sum game, it is a decreasing sum

         19  trajectory.  To finance a new service to provide

         20  emergency contraception, DOHMH, will have no choice,

         21  but to reduce or eliminate some other service above

         22  and beyond those that have already been proposed for

         23  reduction, and I would add, above and beyond those

         24  that are likely to be proposed in the coming weeks

         25  as we address the ongoing fiscal crisis.

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 Most of our services are legally

          3  mandated, or are directly related to public health

          4  and safety.  Therefore, our options are few.  They

          5  include such painful choices, as reducing case

          6  management services for high risk pregnant women,

          7  with closure of at least one field site for the

          8  Maternal Infant and Reproductive Health Program.

          9                 Another option, would be elimination

         10  of at least one more lead safe housing program,

         11  reducing funding for community based programs for

         12  HIV prevention, reducing the number of

         13  exterminations we can provide in our pest control

         14  program.

         15                 There may be other options, but they

         16  are very few and far between, and we are running out

         17  of options, in fact, we have run out of options for

         18  things that we can cut and reduce without impact.

         19                 Incidentally, if this legislation is

         20  enacted in it's current form, the 30- day time frame

         21  proposed, would simply be impossible for my

         22  Department to comply with.  We would have to train

         23  dozens of staff, develop new protocols, procure the

         24  medicine, establish procedures, and this would have

         25  to be done across all five boroughs, in ten clinics.
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          2    It can not responsibly be done in less then 90

          3  days.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Commissioner,

          5  just so you know, we sent the Office of Legislative

          6  Affairs, that draft, and reminded them even of it on

          7  Friday.  We have changed that to 120 days.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Well, we can

          9  do it in 90.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I know.  We are

         11  givers here, never let it be said.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  For all the

         13  above reasons, it is, therefore, with sincere regret

         14  that I recommend that the Council delay enactment of

         15  Intro. 285- A.  If a statute is passed in the

         16  current fiscal climate, the unfortunate result is

         17  likely to be that other important services will

         18  close, and/or, the patients with contagious,

         19  sexually transmitted diseases, may have to be turned

         20  away from our STD Clinic sites.

         21                 In view of the increase we have seen

         22  in syphilis rates, as well as the very high ongoing

         23  rates of gonorrhea and chlamydia, this would be an

         24  unfortunate coincidence of the well intention

         25  effort.
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          2                 I am committed to improving the care

          3  in our STD Clinics.  We do indeed have much more to

          4  do.  In particular, not all patients, who should be

          5  tested for HIV are being tested currently, and we

          6  currently provide no family planning services on

          7  site in these clinics.  We are exploring cost

          8  efficient ways to improve services in these two

          9  areas, in particular.

         10                 In addition, we are planning to

         11  introduce a Family Planning Initiative this spring.

         12  Through this initiative, the Department will take a

         13  leadership role in addressing the prevention of

         14  unintended pregnancy, within the constraints of

         15  budget limitations.  The Initiative will include the

         16  Introduction of Family Planning Surveillance, to

         17  help us better understand city wide trends, the

         18  convening of Family Planning Providers, to

         19  coordinate and improve services, a public

         20  information campaign in collaboration with Planned

         21  Parenthood of New York City, and consumer and

         22  provider education.

         23                 Again, thank you for the opportunity

         24  to testify, and I will be happy to answer your

         25  questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I

          3  just want to say that we have been joined by Ad

          4  Council Helen Sears, of Queens, who is a Member of

          5  the Committee.

          6                 I just want to make a couple of

          7  clarifications before going into questions.  Just on

          8  the Intro. 281- A, which is the bill that deals with

          9  the emergency rooms as opposed to the STD Clinics.

         10  The bill as written in the "A" version, says, allows

         11  hospitals, if they believe that it is not medically

         12  appropriate to offer EC to the women in the

         13  emergency department, they do not have to.  So, our

         14  bill as written in the "A" version, based on some

         15  suggestions that were given by both the Department

         16  and the Greater New York Hospital Association, and

         17  advocates, and others, has been amended to track

         18  very, very closely with the state protocol.

         19                 So that first concern, that you raise

         20  in the second paragraph, I think has, very solidly,

         21  been addressed in the bill, and we even actually met

         22  with Representatives of the Archbishop, who

         23  oversees, all, but one of the City's Catholic

         24  Hospitals, all but Cabrini (phonetic), fall under

         25  this umbrella, or whatever.
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          2                 They have been at the Catholic

          3  Hospitals, actually providing emergency

          4  contraception, and they wanted to say when medically

          5  appropriate, so that change has been made.  There

          6  was consensus among all sides working on the bill

          7  that, that was appropriate family planning advocates

          8  choice, advocates who were supposedly sexually

          9  assaulted, and so, that change has been made, just

         10  so you know.

         11                 I think on the part about the

         12  contracting, there is pretty much since the Mayor

         13  took office and the new Council started it, an

         14  agreement to disagree on issues of how much latitude

         15  the Council has when we are buying services.  This

         16  is not the first time that the Council and the

         17  Administration see that issue differently, and I am

         18  absolutely, positive, particularly, since I am the

         19  sponsor of the Equal Benefits Bill, that the

         20  Contracting Bill, that it will not be the last time

         21  that the Council and the Administration see that

         22  issue as it relates to contracting differently.

         23                 As I said, we are in total agreement

         24  with you on the State issue, and would love to work

         25  together on that.
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          2                 On page two, with what you raised in

          3  the last paragraph, I mean, we, you know, have never

          4  proposed, I do not believe in the first none "A"

          5  version of the STD Clinic Bill, that emergency

          6  contraception kind of being distributed in a vacuum.

          7    And, I agree with you that it needs to be done in

          8  a way that helps also the women who are coming in

          9  get the other services that they may in fact, need.

         10                 You know, this bill, will, obviously

         11  have a fiscal impact.  We have distributed a fiscal

         12  impact statement, we believe it is less then what

         13  the Administration had originally told us they

         14  believed it would be.  We have not seen any updated

         15  numbers from the Administration since you were able

         16  to get the additional funding, or that you

         17  referenced in your testimony.

         18                 We believe that the bill will

         19  probably have a fiscal impact in the range of

         20  $750,000/$800,000 range.  We deliberately changed

         21  the start date, so "A", it would give the Department

         22  enough time, particularly since you were

         23  aggressively trying to find outside funding and

         24  matching sources, and also so that the bill would

         25  not start in this fiscal year, it would start in the
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          2  next fiscal year so it would give us all a more, a

          3  larger forum to discuss the funding for this in.

          4                 I will just say for the record, you

          5  know I do not think, particularly the start date is

          6  120 days, we can have a larger discussion outside of

          7  the confines of the Department of Health and Mental

          8  Hygiene budget for this year about where to find

          9  funding.  And I believe that if emergency

         10  contraception is the priority that Mayor Bloomberg

         11  has said it is, the priority that he said is was

         12  while running for Mayor, the priority he continues

         13  to say it is on his report card, web page, that the

         14  funding will be found, particularly since it will

         15  happen in a larger budget context.

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: It will

         17  happened with a much smaller budget, is what will

         18  happen.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Without question,

         20  and the Council has been working hard to make it a

         21  larger budget, even in the  context of smaller

         22  budgets.  But, I do not think given the fact  that,

         23  although the New York Police Department is doing an

         24  outstanding job, and most crime categories have gone

         25  down significantly, given the fact that rape is the
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          2  only, one of the only crime categories in the City

          3  that continues to rise and in 2002, we had over

          4  2,000 rapes in this City, that even in that context

          5  of the smaller budgets, that we cannot, that we

          6  could not seize this opportunity to get emergency

          7  contraception more out there and available to women

          8  in both the ER situations and Clinics, because not

          9  every woman who needs it will go to the ER's.

         10                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Just to

         11  clarify, we do not deal with rape patients in our

         12  STD Clinics we refer them to Emergency Departments,

         13  where they can get comprehensive care that is

         14  required.  So, just to be cleared, that is not a

         15  role for STD Clinics.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No, but, some

         17  women may end up going to Clinic in their

         18  neighborhood and not necessarily presenting in that

         19  way, and it would be another way for women to get

         20  emergency contraception.

         21                 I do not know if any of the Committee

         22  members have any questions?  Councilmen Stewart.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Dr. Frieden,

         24  your argument about the cost, I just want you to

         25  clarify a little bit for me, the cost of prevention
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          2  of unwanted pregnancies.  Isn't going to be greater

          3  in the long run then this program?

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  The issue of

          5  whether it is cost saving overall, is a complicated

          6  issue.  It might be, it might not be.  I would hope

          7  it would be, if it is effectively implemented, but

          8  it is going to save costs from somebody else's

          9  pocket.  It is not going to save costs from the

         10  City's pocket, and one of the unfortunate realities

         11  of the way our society works, is that there are many

         12  things that we do that will save money to other

         13  people, but we may not have money to implement those

         14  programs.

         15                 I just cannot emphasize strongly

         16  enough, that all of us to come to terms with the

         17  fact that we are broke, as a City.  We just can not

         18  go on adding services.  If you want to add a

         19  service, we are going to have to reduce a service

         20  somewhere else, and, in fact, we are already

         21  reducing services, and as we go forward with a large

         22  budget gap, with unsure savings from various

         23  quarters, as you have read in the papers, and as I

         24  have read in the papers, there are likely to be

         25  significant additional reductions in the near
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          2  future.  And, so, when we look at adding a service,

          3  whether it is a million dollars, or a little bit

          4  more, or a little bit less, we look at what it means

          5  to reduce.  It means a certain number of

          6  exterminations that we will not do it, it means, let

          7  save houses that we will not contract with, it means

          8  closure of clinics, it means layoff of staff.  That

          9  is what it means.

         10                 We just have to face the fact that

         11  the money at our disposal is much less then we wish

         12  it would be.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So, what you

         14  are saying is that it is a worthwhile program, and

         15  just that we do not have the money?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Absolutely, oh

         17  absolutely.  I think it is a wonderful program.  I

         18  would love to do Effective Family Planning in all of

         19  our STD clinics tomorrow.  I think we should do it,

         20  I think that it is wrong that we do not do it.  But,

         21  the reality is, it would cost with the million

         22  dollar price tag that we are using, is just for

         23  emergency contraception.  To provide more

         24  comprehensive family planning, which would be more

         25  effective, at preventing unintended pregnancy, would
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          2  cost substantially more.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Part of what you

          5  said I disagree with, because I think there will be

          6  a cost saving to the City, because, many, I would

          7  think of the women who would come into,-  If a women

          8  is getting her regular, a lot of her regular care

          9  from the Department of Health or the Health and

         10  Hospital Cooperations Public Health Infrastructure

         11  in the City, then, if that women was not to get

         12  emergency contraception and ended up getting

         13  pregnant and having a child, much of that medical

         14  cost, I would assume, would end up being paid for,

         15  in part or whole, by the public health system of the

         16  City, which would cost the City, maybe it is more in

         17  HCC's budget, or whatever, but end up costing the

         18  City, and the City's taxpayers money.

         19                   So, I think, preventing unintended

         20  pregnancy occurring, and in this case, particularly

         21  among the population of women who utilize the City's

         22  Public Health Clinics, which we can assume whom are

         23  women who have limited, if any other, insurance or

         24  health care options.  I think, at the end of the

         25  day, will end up saving the City money, because you
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          2  will have less women who do not want to have

          3  children, having children.

          4                   We can only assume that they would

          5  stay in the Public Health System for their prenatal

          6  care, for their birth, and delivery, and then the

          7  post- birth care.

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  It may.  If

          9  you think about the program, there would be a cost

         10  of evaluating a large number of women to see if some

         11  would be appropriate for emergency contraception.

         12  Then, some women would be provided emergency

         13  contraception.  Those women, either, would not have

         14  become pregnant anyway, or would have become

         15  pregnant and pursued an abortion or had a

         16  miscarriage, or would of had a child who might or

         17  might not have had medical costs that were

         18  avoidable, if the mother had wanted not to have that

         19  pregnancy.

         20                 It is a complicated argument.  I

         21  think it may well, save money, but I do not think,

         22  there is any certainty that would do so, and it

         23  certainly would not do so within a measurable way

         24  within the City's budget.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I guess, I mean
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          2  that is something that we will have to disagree on.

          3  I mean, certainly, pregnancies take nine months, so

          4  it would not all be in the next fiscal year, but, I

          5  think it would end up having a savings for the City,

          6  both for within your Department and perhaps more so,

          7  within the Department of Health, within the Health

          8  and Hospitals Corporation.

          9                 The pilot that you guys are doing,

         10  which is great, in Jamaica.  Where was the funding

         11  for that found?

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Some of that

         13  is from the Baseline Maternity Funding, that was

         14  increased and restored to the program, or restored

         15  back into the program.  And then, as I said just

         16  last week we got the Lower Public House Service

         17  Pricing for Plan B.  So, that is why our estimate of

         18  the amount has gone down by several hundred thousand

         19  dollars, because, we can get it quite cost

         20  effectively, which we are delighted with.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Madam Chair,

         22  can I be excused, I have to take a vote on Committee

         23  Contracts?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Sure, sure.

         25  Council Member Vann.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Yeah, thank

          3  you, Madam Chair. I was wondering if the

          4  Commissioner would respond to your response with

          5  concerning his perception of 281- A, being in

          6  somewhat conflict with the State's protocol for

          7  acute care.  You seem to suggest that 281- A would

          8  be a problem, and I know, thought, that the Chair

          9  addressed in terms of having meant with the Assembly

         10  Health Chair and so forth.  Did you have a response

         11  to that, did you accept that, or do you have any

         12  concerns?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  I do not have

         14  any comment on that specifically at this time.  I

         15  would have to look at it more. The bigger issue, I

         16  think,  for the Administration, it really does have

         17  to do with the contracting process.  We, as a City,

         18  spent $8 billion on contracting.  I have said in a

         19  different context, and I suppose it is appropriate

         20  in this context, as well, that is takes longer in

         21  New York City to have a contract than a baby.

         22                 It is really a broken system, it does

         23  not work, it takes a long time, and every additional

         24  requirement that we put on it, makes it less

         25  efficient, and adds a frictional cost to doing
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          2  business with the City that results in our ability

          3  to buy less services,  And so that, I think the

          4  larger issue, is the contracting issue and the

          5  requirements being put onto contracts.            Because

          6  , when we go the other way around, and we have

          7  Programs complaining that contracts are taking a

          8  long time to get done.  You know, we kind of throw

          9  up our hands and say these are competing priorities.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  So your concern

         11  is not whether or not, your concern is the length of

         12  time it takes these contracts to be executed?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  No, the

         14  concern is, first off, I cannot speak for the Law

         15  Department, but the communication that I saw from

         16  them, said clearly, that in their view this is not

         17  legally acceptable.  That it violates case law and

         18  decisions that have been taken at the Judicial

         19  level, at the State level.  And therefore, there are

         20  legal reasons why the Law Department opposes the

         21  legislation.

         22                 I think, the broader issue has to do

         23  with, if we contract with for say, Chemical

         24  Dependency Services, with Hospital X, to what extent

         25  we put onto that contract, things that are not
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          2  integral to the provision of those services.  If we

          3  do that, we slow down the contracting system, we

          4  reduce the number of people who are willing to enter

          5  into contracts with us, we make it more expensive to

          6  do contracting, and it is really going the opposite

          7  direction from where we need to go in terms of

          8  simplifying, and yet, remain, retaining as

          9  transparent and anti- corrupt our contracting

         10  procedures.  So, I think that is the main issue.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Madam Chair, to

         12  the legal question.  We have researched out, and

         13  what have we decided?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I think that, you

         15  know, we, our legal staff feels comfortable, very

         16  comfortable with this bill, Judith Macfarlane,

         17  accounts to this Committee has reviewed it, Rob

         18  Newman Accounts, the Contract Committee has reviewed

         19  it, Eric Lane, who is the Special Legal Advisor to

         20  the Speaker, has reviewed it, and feels comfortable

         21  with it.

         22                 My next question, actually,

         23  Commissioner was going to be, which I think, follows

         24  up on your point.  Do you know, and you may not

         25  know, the concerns that are being raised in that
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          2  bill, not from a medical perspective, but from a

          3  legal perspective, seem to me to be very similar

          4  ones that were raised by the Administration prior to

          5  the passage of the Living Wage Bill.              Though

          6  , in the end, the Administration seemed to overcome

          7  those concerns, or realized that they were not

          8  correct about those concerns, or whatever, because,

          9  Mayor Bloomberg ended up signing that bill.  So, I

         10  think they are very, very much the same issues, that

         11  seem to be given greater weight at different moments

         12  in the Legislative process around different pieces

         13  of legislation.  So that said, how do these issues

         14  differ with those?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  I am a doctor,

         16  not a lawyer, but the Administration will follow- up

         17  with you after the hearing about that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And I do not

         19  think that you would know the answer to tell the

         20  truth, but I just want to put it on the record, that

         21  I do think that the issues of contracting and the

         22  Administration's concern about the legality of the

         23  Councils actions around contracting, tend to change

         24  and evolve at points in the legislative process,

         25  and, at different points, on different bills, for
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          2  different reasons, which is another reason our Legal

          3  staff feels very comfortable and confident about the

          4  bill.  And, as I said before, this is not the last

          5  time we are going to come across this tension.

          6                 I just want to say, on that one bill,

          7  you know, we, the Contracting Bill, I think it is

          8  very important, because we certainly gotten reports,

          9  and the leads sponsored the bill, Council member

         10  Moskowitz, reports from staff in the District

         11  Attorney's Office that women have gone to them and

         12  had reported to them that they were not told about

         13  the availability of emergency contraception, when

         14  they went to emergency rooms after they have been

         15  the victims of rape.

         16                 It was really reports from the

         17  District Attorney's Office, District Attorney of

         18  Manhattan's Office, that lead Council member

         19  Moskowitz to start this bill.  So, that is a very

         20  serious concern, and then couple that, with the 1999

         21  survey that NARAL did, which showed that 55 percent

         22  of the hospital's emergency rooms in the City,

         23  either did not  provide emergency contraception to

         24  rape victims, or did not have a clear policy on

         25  whether or not they were supposed to do that.
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          2                 Those things put together, are very

          3  troubling, and perhaps more troubling, in my

          4  opinion, then any questions about contracting

          5  protocol.  And, on the point of needing to

          6  streamline contracting, we agree with you, and that

          7  is why recently, the Council and Comptroller's

          8  Office came out with a list of contracting

          9  suggestions, that Chairperson Jackson, and the

         10  Contracts Committee, is hopefully moving on very,

         11  very quickly.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Just to

         13  clarify.  That the legislation as it is proposed,

         14  would require a series of things, right?

         15                 It would require an annual report to

         16  the Department.

         17                 It would require that each and every

         18  contractor, MRU, would contain a clause about this,

         19  so that it would be added to every single contract

         20  that the City enters into with any hospital.  I

         21  think this is only a hospital at this point.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Correct.  It is

         23  only hospitals.

         24                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  No, it is not.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yeah, it is, if
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          2  you go back to the beginning.  Yeah, yeah.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Provides

          4  emergency care.  So you added provides emergency

          5  care.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And it also for

          7  the definition of the bill, it has a General

          8  Emergency Department, so, I do not know, if for

          9  example, if the Hospital for Joint Disease has an

         10  emergency room, but let us, for argument sake, say

         11  that it does, they would not be captioned in this

         12  bill, because that is an emergency room where you

         13  would go, if you were a patient at the hospital of

         14  Joint Disease as opposed, to say St. Vincent's, that

         15  has a general, multi- service, that probably is not

         16  the right medical term.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  I am not sure

         18  if I have the latest version, because the latest

         19  version that I have defines a hospital as any

         20  facility operating pursuant to Article 28, of the

         21  Public Health Law, which provides emergency medical

         22  care.  That is a much broader definition.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I will make sure

         24  we get you the most updated version, but which was

         25  provided to us by the Office of Legislative Affairs.
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          2    We specifically, are targeting, general, hospitals

          3  with General Emergency Departments.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  It is the same

          5  in the thing that was handed out today.  I maybe

          6  reading it wrong, but, that is how I read it.  If

          7  you look at page 4, of what you handed out today, it

          8  says that, again, at the bottom of that page, any

          9  facility operating pursuant to Article 28 of the

         10  Public Health Law, which provides emergency medical

         11  care.

         12                 Just to note, any clinic, Article 28

         13  is any place, that is operating as a clinic, and any

         14  of them could provide emergency medical care in an

         15  emergency, if someone, that is very different  from

         16  operating an emergency department that accepts

         17  ambulances.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  If you read on,

         19  it says that this definition is meant, encompass

         20  General Emergency Departments.

         21  And we've - -

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: It encompasses

         23  them, but it also encompasses a lot more.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  We vetted this

         25  definition by, you know, Greater New York Hospital

                                                            37

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  Association, with the point to them that our

          3  intention was to capture the emergency departments

          4  that I just described, and it was their feeling that

          5  this definition did that.

          6                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Accepting it,

          7  is accepting ambulances your intent, and if so, is

          8  it in, I do not mean ask you questions, but, if you

          9  were to have the intent to of accepting ambulances,

         10  then that is something, perhaps should be addressed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Again, I am a

         13  doctor, not a lawyer.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right, right.

         15  There is not quite as clear a system in the City, as

         16  you might think for what determines what hospitals

         17  take ambulances, and which ones do not. It is a

         18  little more, free flowing, well free flowing is not

         19  that, it is just that one might of thought that

         20  there was like, specific contracts for X, you know,

         21  has to have a contract or a clear MOU, or something.

         22    It is not quite that clear.

         23                 But, you are correct.  The earlier

         24  version, the first version was far, was absolute,

         25  although the intent, was this, was written in a way
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          2  that captured more then was ever the intention to

          3  capture.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 The next witness is going to be, the

          6  Public Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum.

          7                 We have been joined by Council Member

          8  Yvette Clarke.

          9                 I am sorry, Commissioner, I am sorry,

         10  I apologize, I did not realize that Council Member

         11  Sears had a question.  I am sorry, so Betsy, it will

         12  a few more seconds.  I apologize.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Mine will be

         14  very quick, Thank you, Madam Chairman.

         15                 Just for clarification, you talk

         16  about delaying this 281, I believe, 285.  How long

         17  of a delay do you really envision? When you request

         18  a delay, do you have any time frame in which you see

         19  that our economy would be so boosted that we would

         20  be able entertain a delay?

         21                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Again, I am

         22  not only not a lawyer, I am not an economist.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Oh, I know

         24  that, neither are we, but we deal with a budget.

         25                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  But, I would
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          2  think, after, several months we will have a very

          3  good sense of how the program in operation in

          4  Jamaica is working.  And then we will be able to

          5  estimate, not just estimate, but actually calculate,

          6  what the costs will be, and what potential revenue

          7  streams would be.

          8                 Maybe, we can do this without a whole

          9  lot of money. Maybe it will cost $10 million, I just

         10  do not know at this point. And so, what we are

         11  doing, is putting in a mandate that might end up

         12  wiping out significant other services that would

         13  otherwise be available in order to comply with.

         14  That is my point, that the  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay.  That

         16  leads to my next question.  This is not something

         17  that suddenly has popped up, emergency

         18  contraceptives have been discussed for some time,

         19  and certainly within the City and the Health

         20  Department of the City of New York.

         21                 Do you have any idea what programs,

         22  if this were to go through, that you would have to

         23  cut, what programs you would reduce?  Because what

         24  we are doing is pivoting a program against a

         25  program.  That is a very dangerous thing to do, in
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          2  the City of New York.

          3                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  It is Council

          4  member, but that is the reality of the world we live

          5  in.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, do you

          7  have any idea what programs - -

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  I did say in

          9  my testimony, and I will reiterate that - -

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I know you

         11  talked about staff, and you talked about management,

         12  but I am not so sure I heard, although I came late,

         13  specific programs.

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  Maybe you were

         15  not there, it is in the testimony, but I will

         16  reiterate, that we have already absorbed more then

         17  $100 million in reductions.

         18                 Most of the programs that remain, are

         19  legally mandated programs, or are directly related

         20  to public safety.  The ones that are not, are ones

         21  that are near and dear to many of our hearts.  They

         22  include things like, pest control, they include lead

         23  safe houses, they include HIV Prevention Contracts,

         24  they include Maternity Services programs and

         25  clinics, or not clinics, but, Maternity Services
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          2  Offices, that might well have to be closed to fund

          3  this initiative.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  All right,

          5  And just one question, not related to this.  Why

          6  does Queens not have an STD Clinic?  I am reading

          7  here - -

          8                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  We have two

          9  STD Clinics.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  It says here,

         11  4 in Manhattan, 1 in the Bronx, and 2 in Brooklyn.

         12  I am reading something wrong, what is that?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  That is an error

         14  by our staff, that is an error by our staff.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  We have 2 in

         16  Queens, Corona and Jamaica.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  That is what I

         18  thought, but you know, but you know.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I think that a

         20  sentence may have fallen off.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Something may,

         22  okay.  I withdraw that.  All right.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  The computer may

         24  have, it was an anti- Queens computer in the Finance

         25  Division, we will have to get rid of it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, all

          3  right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I just wanted to

          5  say before the Commissioner leaves, I just want to

          6  add so that Council Member Sears knows, that there

          7  is in fact in the Jamaica Clinic, the Department is

          8  working on a pilot initiative, which is detailed in

          9  the Commissioner's testimony.

         10                 You know many of the programs that

         11  you listed in both your testimony, and right now for

         12  Council Member Sears, are programs that are near and

         13  dear to all of our hearts.  In fact, the majority of

         14  the programs you listed, actually, are Council

         15  initiatives.  And, ones that are obviously very

         16  important to us. You know, obviously, it is

         17  difficult at times like this to pass any type of

         18  legislation that has a fiscal impact, in any area,

         19  health, transportation, the environment, whatever.

         20                 We deliberately moved the start date

         21  to give us more time to find the funding for this.

         22  I think though, in a $49 billion budget, even in

         23  times like this, we cannot come to a halt. As even

         24  your initiative in Jamaica shows, we cannot stop,

         25  particularly, with something as important as
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          2  emergency contraception and getting those services

          3  out to women, who in New York, where all studies

          4  have shown that women, not just in New York, but in

          5  the United States, have no knowledge of the resource

          6  that emergency contraception is, and, therefore do

          7  not use it.

          8                 So, I am not in any way trying to be

          9  irresponsible as the testimony might suggest, or not

         10  mindful of the Department's budget constraint, in

         11  fact, I think this Committee has worked hard to try

         12  to be a partner, and beyond for the Department, when

         13  that it is appropriate to keep monies in your budget

         14  for these matters and others.

         15                 But, I think that there has to be a

         16  way in the entirety of a $49 billion budget, to find

         17  700 to 800 thousand dollars, and maybe it will not

         18  even be that much in the first year, because, it is

         19  so unutilized tragically by women in the United

         20  States.  Maybe, it will even ramp up, but there has

         21  to be a way to find that small amount of money, in

         22  that entirety of the City's budget, to make sure

         23  women in New York City have this resource at a

         24  multiple of levels, including our Public Sexually

         25  Transmitted Disease Clinics, which is, as you well
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          2  know better then anybody, the only health care some

          3  women in this City receive.

          4                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN:  I do want to

          5  clarify that I mentioned four programs, only

          6  because, not because they are Council Programs, but

          7  because, if we look at where to cut, there just

          8  aren't places.  We have done it.  You know if there

          9  was something that was cutable, it is gone.  So, you

         10  know that is, the sad reality of the world we live

         11  in.

         12                 We are looking at the proposed

         13  Governor's legislation on the budget, would result

         14  in a devastating reduction in Articles VI matching

         15  funds for the City, it would result in the loss of

         16  30 to 40 million dollars to the City's health

         17  budget.  The overall fiscal problems continue, and

         18  are likely to result in continued budget reduction

         19  programs.  So it is not in any way an attempt to

         20  say, you know, we are going to hit back at the

         21  Council, or anything like that.  It is just the

         22  reality.  If you want to suggest other areas to look

         23  at, I will be happy to look at other areas to

         24  reduce, but something has got to give.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I am not in
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          2  anyway trying to decrease the significance of the

          3  budget crisis, or what the Governor is doing.  In

          4  fact, the Council is probably the most aggressive

          5  body in the City right now, and our Speaker,

          6  perhaps, the most aggressive person, as it relates

          7  to saying what Albany is doing is bad, and wrong,

          8  and going to hurt us.

          9                 But, we cannot have health care for

         10  women be frozen in this City, even in light of that.

         11    And, I do not believe that there is no way, in a

         12  $49 billion budget, to find 750 to 800 thousand

         13  dollars, and maybe even a little less, next year, to

         14  get this service out to women who desperately,

         15  desperately need it.

         16                 We will have to move forward in the

         17  next, it will be more then 120 days, but 120 days

         18  from signing, or, whatever, to make sure that we

         19  find that money in a way, that is not, pitting

         20  services against services, as Council Member Sears

         21  said.  I am confident that we are going to be able

         22  to do that.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 The Public Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum.

         25                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Good
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          2  morning, and I want to commend the Committee on

          3  bringing up this, or having this hearing this

          4  morning on this extremely important issue, and it is

          5  at a time when everything is very, very bad.

          6                   But, I think it is a time, when it

          7  is so important, that you emphasize how vital this

          8  is to the health of women in New York City.  So, I

          9  am very proud to have the opportunity to speak to

         10  you about this important issue, and I am here to

         11  express my support for Intro's. 278- A, 281- A, and

         12  285- A. Three bills that will include, improve, the

         13  health of New York City's women and prevent many

         14  unwanted pregnancies.

         15                 Choosing one to have children is one

         16  of the most important decisions a women can make.

         17  Yet, every year, more then half of the pregnancies

         18  in America are unwanted, and more then half of those

         19  end in abortion.

         20                 Emergency contraception, or EC, as it

         21  becoming known, is a safe tool for women and Health

         22  Professionals in the battle of unwanted pregnancy.

         23  EC, or emergency contraception, is not an abortion.

         24  It is something that a lot of people do not know, it

         25  really prevents pregnancies, and studies have shown
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          2  that emergency contraception has no effect on

          3  already established pregnancies.

          4                 For many years, Reproductive Rights

          5  Advocates have observed that very few women know

          6  about emergency contraception.

          7  In a year 2000 survey, only half the women of child

          8  bearing age, were aware that there was something

          9  that they could do after having unprotected sex, to

         10  prevent a pregnancy.  Many women who are aware of

         11  emergency contraception, did not know that the

         12  product is available in the United States.

         13                 Today, we are here with hopes of

         14  remedying this problem.  In New York City, even

         15  women who know about and want emergency

         16  contraception, come up against to many barriers.

         17                 After the devastation of rape, a

         18  women should not have to face the further trauma of

         19  an unwanted pregnancy.  NARAL New York, found that

         20  57 percent of the 58 hospitals, do not provide

         21  adequate health care to rape survivors, including,

         22  offering them emergency contraceptive.

         23                 Intro. 281- A, will require the City

         24  to contract with, or provide funding, only to

         25  hospitals and medical facilities that inform rape
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          2  victims of the availability of emergency

          3  contraceptives, and administer the drug if accepted,

          4  if requested. Emergency contraceptives should be

          5  available where ever a women turns for help with an

          6  unwanted pregnancy.

          7                 Intro. 285- A, will require the

          8  Department of Health to make emergency contraceptive

          9  available at its Centers, Clinics, and other

         10  facilities.

         11                 Finally, even after women has a

         12  prescription for emergency contraception, she may

         13  face obstacles at her drug store. According to an

         14  investigation, by the Committee of Oversight of

         15  Investigations, only 55 percent of New York

         16  pharmacies, carry emergency contraception.  We must

         17  work to expand the availability of emergency

         18  contraception, and Intro. 278- A, takes the first

         19  step by requiring pharmacies to post signs for

         20  guarding the sale of emergency contraception.

         21                 I am proud to support these bills.  I

         22  pledge to work with the sponsors of the bill, and

         23  Reproductive Rights Advocates, to expand the

         24  availability of emergency contraception to all women

         25  who need it in New York City.
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          2                 Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you, Public

          4  Advocate.  Do we have any questions?  Council Member

          5  Vann.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair.  I am wondering, Madam Public Advocate,

          8  would you comment on the Commissioner's notification

          9  to us that, should we go ahead with this, that this

         10  should create a problem, and something else has t

         11  go.  I know that this it is not necessarily your

         12  area of expertise, but you know budgets and you know

         13  City government. I am wondering if you would weigh

         14  in on that particular argument?

         15                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Well, I

         16  would have to agree with your Chairwoman, because I

         17  think that we should be able to find, in a 43 years,

         18  a $45 billion budget, $750 thousand to certainly get

         19  this going, and to begin to get a momentum where

         20  women know the availability, where they know can go

         21  to certain clinics.  I cannot believe, we have to

         22  cut out other programs in order to do this very

         23  important program.

         24                 So, that is why I commend, you all,

         25  so much, in bringing this up at this time.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  In that

          3  light, Madam, Public Advocate, how would you speak

          4  to the critic, who says, there is a study being done

          5  in Jamaica right now, Jamaica, Queens, right now,

          6  and you would get some better figures by June/July,

          7  shouldn't we postpone this until that time?

          8                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Well, I

          9  think, personally, I think not, because I think I

         10  feel so passionately about the fact that we need to

         11  get this information out to women, so they begin to

         12  demand, and the more they demand, the more they will

         13  be responded to.  So, I think, we being responsible

         14  elected officials, have got to push for this now,

         15  and I think we have to watch what happens as a

         16  result of those studies.

         17                 And, again, I commend this Committee

         18  for bringing it up at this time.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, I

         20  understand that.  It is not that there is no EC

         21  available, it is just that we want to make it more

         22  readily available.

         23                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  And, I am

         25  saying, that there is a study being done, right now,
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          2  and we will know exactly what it is going cost.  We

          3  are going to have a better way of really

          4  administering it, and in light of the fiscal crisis

          5  that we are in right now, you know, based on what

          6  the Commissioner just said awhile ago about cutting

          7  different areas.  Shouldn't we just wait for the

          8  study and make a decision?

          9                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  I am afraid

         10  that if you wait, there are going to be all kinds of

         11  other things that will sneak in.  And, therefore, I

         12  think that it is very important, at this time, to

         13  push for this particular, these particular bills,

         14  because I do believe that emergency contraception is

         15  such an important issue, and such an important to

         16  everybody, not just to women, but to men, too.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         19                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Carla Goldstein

         21  of Planned Parenthood of New York City.  Carla, is

         22  it all right with you if we call everybody up at the

         23  same time?  Okay, great.

         24                 Harriet Lessel, of New York City

         25  Alliance Against Sexual Assault, and Destiny Lopez,
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          2  of the National Abortion Rights Action League of New

          3  York State.

          4                 I know that Carla is on a bit of a

          5  time constraint, so she will be the first of the

          6  three to go.

          7                 MS. GOLDSTEIN:  It does not mean that

          8  I am going to be short, though.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  That is okay.

         10                 MS. GOLDSTEIN:  I want to thank you,

         11  Council Member Quinn, for conveying this hearing,

         12  and for your leadership on these issues.  I also

         13  want to thank your staff and all the colleagues on

         14  the Council, for taking up what is a very, very

         15  important public health issue for women.

         16                 We have testified before this

         17  Committee once before, so I am not going to go

         18  through all the details of Planned Parenthood of New

         19  York City's experience.  And the Public Advocate,

         20  did just again, go through some of the very

         21  important and compelling statistics for why this is

         22  something that we should pay urgent attention to.

         23                 What did I want to do, is emphasize,

         24  the history a bit of emergency contraception from

         25  the prospective that women have had discrimination
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          2  against them from a medical prospective for years

          3  and years and years.  We have been fighting, all the

          4  while, to get coverage, and services, and medical

          5  research, that address, and treat, and help women in

          6  their lives, and emergency contraception is no

          7  different.

          8                 We had to battle the FDA to get

          9  approval, and after many, many, many years, 30 years

         10  of knowing that this is something, that can prevent

         11  an unwanted pregnancy, we finally, got the FDA to

         12  approve it.  And now we have two products that are

         13  available.  So, for every minute that we are not

         14  making this technology available for women, we are

         15  short changing women, and it is discrimination

         16  against women.  So, thank you very much for all your

         17  efforts to improve access and awareness about

         18  emergency contraception.

         19                 I want to also, address a few of the

         20  points, that the Commissioner raised today, and I

         21  see that he has left, but his staff is still here.

         22  And, I know, that they are working very hard to

         23  figure out a way to make this program work, and we

         24  are going to be collaborating with them, and I think

         25  that is something that the Committee should know.
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          2                 I want to address the first point

          3  about the cost. I think that the prevention of

          4  unintended pregnancies, the costs savings have been

          5  well documented.  For years and years, as advocates

          6  for birth control and family planning, we have done

          7  study upon study that shows that preventing an

          8  unintended pregnancy, saves money.

          9                 So, while it is true, that the cost

         10  savings may not accrue, and to DOH, particularly as

         11  a City agency, there is no question, that cost

         12  savings will accrue to the City budget at large.

         13                 We also want to recognize, and

         14  acknowledge, the Commissioner's point, that it does

         15  take staff time, it does take resources to make this

         16  kind of a program operate.  And, as a provider, we

         17  are constantly struggling between the tension of

         18  getting a service up and running, and not having the

         19  resources to do it.  And I think that for them to

         20  come before you, and tell you that it is going to

         21  take resources, is right.  But, on the other hand,

         22  there is just no question that this will save the

         23  City money in the long run.

         24                 I also, want to address the tension

         25  between the Commissioner's testimony that they want
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          2  to provide a full panoply of services to women who

          3  walk through their doors.  There is a tension,

          4  between wanting to do full service, and being able

          5  to give a woman emergency contraception as the

          6  Pharmacy Bill in Albany envisions over- the-

          7  counter, with no medical intervention, what so ever,

          8  but for a few protocol questions, because there are

          9  really not any contra indications for emergency

         10  contraception.  So, that tension does exist, and we

         11  understand the obligation, that DOH feels, to make

         12  sure that the women who come to them, are going to

         13  be counselled properly.

         14                 But, we would make the suggestion to

         15  DOH, that they can partner with other organizations

         16  to do the Family Planning Counseling, they do not

         17  have to do this all by themselves.  And, I think

         18  that there is a way that they can approach this with

         19  the respect to the women, the obligation, the legal

         20  obligation, the ethical obligation, to treat a woman

         21  that comes to them for the panoply of things.

         22                 I mean, we have women come to us all

         23  the time, they think they are coming in for one

         24  thing, and as soon as you start talking, you realize

         25  that there is more time that you have to spend.  So,
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          2  there concern about wanting to spend that time is

          3  right.  But, there are ways to partner with other

          4  organizations and make sure that they can deliver

          5  the service, but get EC, into the hands of women in

          6  a quickly and efficient manner.

          7                 I also want to address the

          8  Commissioner's position that the solutions lie with

          9  these two State bills.  We have all the hopes that

         10  the legislation pending in Albany, in fact, become

         11  law. We have been working as advocates for these

         12  bills for a long time. And, I just want to point the

         13  Committee to some history, some recent history on

         14  clinic access legislation.

         15                 New York City Council was the first

         16  place in the country that passed protections for

         17  abortion providers against violence.  And, the

         18  Federal Government, then passed a law after that.

         19  In Albany, the bill pended, for years and years.  I

         20  think we worked on it for six years before it

         21  passed.

         22                 My hope is that it is not going to

         23  take that long for the emergency contraception bills

         24  to pass in Albany, as it did with clinic access,

         25  but, we can not sit back and rely on Albany as the
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          2  solution.  We have, to as New York City Council has

          3  the past, take a lead.  And, I think that the

          4  Council has provided important state leadership,

          5  national leadership, on these issues.  You can be a

          6  model for municipalities on how, they, too, can

          7  expand  access to emergency contraception.

          8                 So, I applaud your leadership in that

          9  effort.  And, I think that there is just no

         10  question, that making emergency contraception

         11  available is a win/win situation.  It is a win for

         12  the woman, it is a win for families, and it is a win

         13  for the community, and it is most certainly, a win

         14  for the City's budget.

         15                 So, thank you very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         17  Whoever, which ever, you all can flip for it.

         18                 MS. GOLDSTEIN:  My colleague, Lori

         19  Beck, is here in case there were some questions on

         20  emergency contraception.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.  Harriet.

         22                 MS. LESSEL:  Yes, I would like to

         23  thank the Council Health Committee for their efforts

         24  in trying to get emergency contraception available,

         25  and I am going to speak specifically about Intro.
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          2  281- A.

          3                 Every rape victim should have the

          4  right to make a decision about what she wants to do

          5  about a potential pregnancy after a rape.  Whatever

          6  hospital they go to, where ever the rape occurred in

          7  New York City, it should not be depended upon that

          8  particular hospital.  Because, folks do not even

          9  know where their Specialized Rape Crisis Programs,

         10  know less whether a hospital is offering EC, or if

         11  they have the policy, and whether that policy is

         12  being followed.

         13                 It just adds a burden, that I know

         14  that we always have to consider the monetary and the

         15  fiscal aspects, but this really goes beyond monetary

         16  and fiscal aspects after somebody has experienced a

         17  sexual assault.  They should not have to be re

         18  victimized, by not being the appropriate choices

         19  about what to do vis- a- vis the pregnancy.

         20                 We, know that, many hospitals do not

         21  follow the New York State Department of Health

         22  standards, because the clause that allows certain

         23  hospitals not provide the EC directly, but would

         24  ensure, that the person would get EC within the

         25  required time frame, I have not heard of any
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          2  stories, in which, that has occurred.  And, it is

          3  not enough, to ensure, that every rape victim has

          4  the choice.

          5                 I handed out the same testimony that

          6  we talked about at the last hearing, so I was really

          7  just going to keep my remarks short, and I would be

          8  happy to answer any questions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         10  Destiny.

         11                 MS. LOPEZ:  I would like to thank the

         12  Committee, again, for having me here today, because

         13  I am part of the Emergency Contraception Access

         14  Campaign, which is a Statewide coalition of public

         15  health advocates, medical health professionals, and

         16  community organizations dedicated to expanding

         17  access to EC.  I actually do want to reiterate some

         18  of these compelling statistics that we have on

         19  emergency contraception.

         20                 When taken within 72 hours of

         21  unprotected sex,

         22  EC can reduce the risk of pregnancy up to 75 to 89

         23  percent.  It is an FDA approved method of back- up

         24  birth control, and its use can prevent as many as

         25  1.5 million of the three million unintended
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          2  pregnancies in the United States, including up to

          3  700,000 abortions.  In New York State alone, this

          4  can mean the prevention up to 6,000 abortions.

          5                 In fact, EC, has been proven so safe

          6  and so effective, that four States, Alaska,

          7  California, Washington, and New Mexico, allow women

          8  to obtain EC directly from a pharmacist.

          9                 Despite its proven efficacy in

         10  safety, EC is still not widely available to the

         11  women in our State, or in our City, particularly, to

         12  survivors of sexual assault.  According to a recent

         13  study conducted by Family Planning Advocates of New

         14  York State, statewide, as many as 1,000 rape

         15  survivors a year may be sent away from hospital

         16  emergency departments without receiving emergency

         17  contraception.

         18                 NARAL, New York's own investigation,

         19  as Chairwoman Quinn mentioned earlier, into the

         20  availability of EC in hospital emergency rooms

         21  reveal that only 36 percent of New York City'S

         22  hospital emergency rooms, provided EC on site; while

         23  19 percent had no clear policy on EC provision.

         24                 Emergency contraception is simply a

         25  double dose of birth control, yet it remains, one of
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          2  the most powerful tools available to prevent

          3  unintended pregnancy.

          4                 The Committee should be applauded for

          5  its willingness to expand EC today, through in

          6  introduction of the bills that we are discussing.

          7  These bills, particularly Intro's. 285- A and 281-

          8  A, will ensure the Department of Health and Mental

          9  Hygiene Clinics make EC available, as well as the

         10  City contracting only with those hospitals that

         11  inform sexual assault victims about the availability

         12  of EC.

         13                 Just to talk a moment about the cost

         14  savings as well.  We do know, as Carla mentioned,

         15  that numerous studies have been done on cost

         16  savings. And particularly, as it pertains to

         17  patients, we know that for private pairs, use of EC

         18  could save up to $150 in health care costs, and that

         19  number is slightly less for public pairs.

         20                 The National Abortion and

         21  Reproductive Rights Action League of New York, and

         22  the Emergency Contraception Access Campaign urges

         23  the Council to pass this package of legislation,

         24  and, I thank you for your time today.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.  I
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          2  just want to add one thing for my colleagues, which

          3  I should have said before.  The only thing about the

          4  bill relating to emergency rooms, is that, providing

          5  emergency contraception to rape victims is this

          6  medical standard of care.

          7                 And, I think, whether it is about,

          8  emergency contraception, or heart care, we as a City

          9  of New York, want to make sure that the hospitals we

         10  are contracting with, are providing the medical

         11  standard of care, and certainly, they are not doing

         12  it in one area, raises concerns about maybe if they

         13  are not doing it in another area.  I just think that

         14  is an important point.

         15                 I want to say that we have been

         16  joined by Council Member Margarita Lopez of

         17  Manhattan, and Council Member David Yassky of

         18  Brooklyn.

         19                 I want to thank the three

         20  organizations at the table who have been doing a

         21  tremendous amount of work on these three bills and

         22  on the issue in general and have been in immensely,

         23  immensely helpful to the Committee and to all of our

         24  staff, very accessible having conversations too far

         25  into Friday night, the cell phones, et cetera, so I
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          2  want to thank all of you very, very much.

          3                 Council Member Yassky.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you

          5  very much, Chair Quinn, I just wanted to come in to

          6  register my very strong support for your efforts in

          7  this area.  There is no reason why City hospitals,

          8  City clinics, and hospitals and clinics that do

          9  business with the City, should not be providing

         10  emergency contraception.  As you say, not just the

         11  standard of care, but for many women it will be a

         12  critical and fundamental need at a critical time.

         13                 And so, I support as strongly as I

         14  can, your efforts Chair Quinn, and I just wanted to

         15  encourage them.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         18                 I just want to underscore the point

         19  that Carla made. I do as I said to the Commissioner,

         20  believe this bill when implemented in law, will have

         21  fiscal savings.  Now, might they end up be a little

         22  more in health and hospital corporation then the

         23  Department of Health?  Yes, they might be, but

         24  nonetheless it is a savings that could be passed on,

         25  to keep this program going.
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          2                 And, I think also, the offer, or

          3  overture that was made when Carla was testifying,

          4  about the ability of the advocacy community to help

          5  in the implementation of this bill, help with things

          6  like referrals, training, et cetera, should not be

          7  underestimated, and that certainly could become part

          8  of a further cost savings, as we move forward to

          9  implement this bill in the next fiscal year.

         10                 And, the bill, as written, would not

         11  even begin the first month of the next fiscal year,

         12  it would probably be a month or two into the fiscal

         13  year, so it actually, really gives some time in

         14  light of the budgets constraints to utilize options

         15  and resources like that to take the cost of the bill

         16  down even further. And, I think it is just a further

         17  credit to the community- based organizations that

         18  are here today, that you would make an offer like,

         19  and I know it is not the first time that you made

         20  it, but then if you would make an offer like that in

         21  general, but certainly at a time when the economy is

         22  also hurt all of your own operating budgets.  So,

         23  thank you all so very much.

         24                 Just before we call our final two

         25  witnesses who registered, and other folks who would
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          2  like to testify, should sign up.  I just want to

          3  read into the record,  testimony from Shirley Ranz,

          4  who is a Registered Pharmacist and the President of

          5  the Brooklyn Chapter the National Organization for

          6  Women.

          7                  "A Memorandum of Support for

          8  proposed Intro. No. 278- A.

          9                 As President of Brooklyn NOW, and as

         10  a pharmacist with over 21 years of experience in

         11  hospital and retail pharmacy, I fully support Intro.

         12  No. 278- A.  Because, of obtaining emergency

         13  contraception, EC, as soon as possible, is so

         14  important in its efficacy, losing precious time,

         15  waiting in line for a pharmacist, only to be told

         16  that the pharmacy does not dispense EC, must be

         17  avoided.

         18                 Posting a sign stating that EC not

         19  sold will address this problem.  I do not find this

         20  requirement to be punitive.  If a pharmacy's policy

         21  is not to sell EC, then it should not hide this

         22  policy from its customers.

         23                 In addition, I believe the posting of

         24  such a sign will serve as an educational tool

         25  informing those who are previously ignorant of the
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          2  existence EC.

          3                 Please vote to pass this law."

          4                 Shirley Ranz

          5                 Registered Pharmacist and President

          6  of Brooklyn NOW.

          7                 Shirley was with us at the first

          8  hearing on the bill, but could not be with us today,

          9  because I think she is in her pharmacy, actually.

         10                 Our final two witnesses, can I call

         11  you both up together, is that okay?  Boris Mantell,

         12  is that right?  And, William Scheer.  Okay, great,

         13  if you would take the witness stand.

         14                 Just while the witnesses are coming

         15  up, I just want to say, the Counsel to the Committee

         16  did go over the bill quickly and the Commissioner's

         17  concern was that it was written in a way that was

         18  too broad and captured institutions beyond emergency

         19  rooms.  As we have looked through the bill, quickly

         20  looked through legislative intent, and checked with

         21  some of the other legal staff that helped with us,

         22  we believe that it was narrowed, and is only

         23  capturing hospitals with General Service Emergency

         24  Departments, And, we are going to send a letter to

         25  the Commissioner.  And that is absolutely our

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  intent, and we believe that is clear, and we are

          3  going to send correspondence to the Commissioner to

          4  that fact.

          5                 Which ever, whoever would, like to

          6  start just go right ahead.

          7                 MR. MANTELL: Hi, My name is Boris

          8  Mantell.  I am President of the Pharmacists Society

          9  of New York, and Chairman of the Board of the New

         10  York City Pharmacist Society.  I am a Pharmacist, I

         11  am a Pharmacy owner in New York City, and on behalf

         12  of the Pharmacist Society, we are in opposition to

         13  278.

         14                 The Pharmacist Society of the State

         15  of New York, is on record, with the New York State

         16  Legislature, as strongly supporting Assembly Bill

         17  888, that would authorize pharmacists and nurses to

         18  administer emergency contraception understanding

         19  order, or order of physician, nurse practitioner, or

         20  midwife.

         21                 With that said, we wish to express

         22  our surprise, this pleasure and opposition, to

         23  propose Local 278- A, that would require pharmacists

         24  to post a sign in large letters stating that they do

         25  not provide emergency contraception.  We find this
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          2  legislation unnecessary,  counter reproductive, and

          3  punitive, with the lack of access to EC has not been

          4  proven.

          5                 We found the phone survey conducted

          6  many months ago, to be flawed and untrustworthy.  As

          7  it relates to whether a pharmacy carried certain EC

          8  product, no one called our Society to ask what was

          9  the best way to survey pharmacists.  They took it

         10  upon themselves, thinking, they knew best, and what

         11  they received was a hurried answer to get them off

         12  the phone so that the pharmacies could get back to

         13  their patients.

         14                 How the question is asked, and what

         15  is asked, are critical in making a realistic

         16  determination, as to whether a problem exists or

         17  not.  To call a pharmacy at the beginning of the

         18  month or the week, or beginning of the week, is

         19  perhaps the worst time, to ask if the pharmacy

         20  carries a certain brand of EC, such as Plan B, is

         21  not reliable.

         22                 Pharmacists have been providing EC

         23  for many years, in the form of birth control pills

         24  prescribed as two in the morning and two in the

         25  evening, and perhaps an over the counter medication
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          2  in case of nausea.

          3                 An entire one months supply of

          4  contraception pills are dispensed with counseling,

          5  as the appropriate amount to be taken.  Pharmacists

          6  know it's EC.  There are more then 2000 pharmacies

          7  in New York City.  We strongly believe that EC

          8  access will not be an issue.  In fact, many

          9  pharmacies may choose to advertise that they carry

         10  EC.

         11                 Please defeat this measure, it is

         12  punitive.

         13                 Bill.

         14                 MR. SCHEER: Hi, my name is Bill

         15  Scheer, and I am the President of the New York City

         16  Pharmacist Society, representing Community Pharmacy

         17  in New York City, I am a practicing pharmacist, I

         18  have a community pharmacy in the Bronx, and I am

         19  also head of the, Legislative Chairman for New York

         20  State.

         21                 I am speaking in opposition to the

         22  bill as it stands.  I do feel it is punitive, as Mr.

         23  Mantell has said.  We are not opposed to the

         24  expanding of knowledge of the EC.  As a matter of

         25  fact, the New York City Pharmacist Society, came on
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          2  line with Ms. Paulings (phonetic) bill in the State

          3  Assembly, over a year ago.  We were one of the first

          4  ones to sign on.

          5                 We believe that this is a very

          6  important issue. However, we do feel that this

          7  survey may not have been the best way to be

          8  conducted.  We feel that had you consulted us, many

          9  times, because pharmacists being overworked as we

         10  are, and there are a shortage of pharmacists in the

         11  community base, may not have answered the questions

         12  correctly.

         13                 I think that there is a higher

         14  penetration in the market place then the survey

         15  states.  We also feel that doing a punitive measure,

         16  such as, the sign, would actually discourage, as

         17  oppose to let's educate, let's get this out.

         18                 We have done a program with the New

         19  York State Department of Health, called the Expanded

         20  Syringe Program, access program, which we have been

         21  supplying syringes for addicts, and people who need

         22  syringes without a prescription.  And, the way we

         23  accomplished this, in working in conjunction with

         24  the Department of Health, is a decal, affixed to the

         25  front of the pharmacy, for those pharmacies who are
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          2  participating in the program.  I think something of

          3  this nature takes the onerous, off both the patient

          4  and the pharmacist, especially for the patient

          5  coming in and not knowing whether they are going to

          6  be comfortable speaking to this pharmacist.  If they

          7  know that this pharmacist has that decal, it is

          8  either on the door or the front window of the

          9  pharmacy, they were much more easily, much more

         10  readily, to come in and speak to us.  And, I have

         11  found that with the expanded Access Program, and we

         12  have had people come in without any bit of onerous

         13  put them.

         14                 So, again, I just urge you, as it is

         15  sitting here, the way it is, if there was an

         16  amendment to it, to get rid of the punitive fines on

         17  the pharmacies for not displaying, I think that

         18  would be the way to amend it in some fashion.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

         20                 MR. MANTELL:  I would like to add

         21  something.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

         23                 MR. MANTELL:  I think that the

         24  Pharmacist Society was very cooperative on many,

         25  many incentives, done by various groups and
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          2  different advocates, and we would be willing to do

          3  that, we were never consulted.  Nobody came to us.

          4                 Many of us may carry one particular

          5  EC and not the other.  We have been doing EC for

          6  many years.  And, it is economically even less

          7  expensive to do a pack of birth control pills, then

          8  to do a Plan B of Prevent, if you think about it.

          9                 So, that shouldn't be an issue.  Let

         10  us work together, let us amend this bill, eliminate

         11  punitive damages, and let us work together, promote

         12  it, and make everybody aware of it, and, we will be

         13  very helpful and supportive of that issue.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  A couple of

         15  comments.  I mean, I do not think the comparison,

         16  although I applaud your efforts with the syringe

         17  initiative, I do not think that it is a parallel

         18  situation, because if you are an IV drug user, you

         19  use syringes. You know you need to get clean

         20  syringes, et cetera, you know you need them.

         21                 All studies indicate, unfortunately,

         22  that the knowledge amongst women of child bearing

         23  age of the existence of emergency contraception, is

         24  very, very small, like single digits in the United

         25  States.  So, a decal, I think, pre- supposes a level
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          2  of awareness in a distinct community that,

          3  unfortunately, does not exist amongst women of child

          4  bearing age in New York City or in the United States

          5  as a whole, unfortunately.

          6                 Beyond that, on the survey, just so

          7  you know, when the City Council Investigation

          8  Division, does a survey, we never contact the

          9  agencies or the entities that we are going to be

         10  surveying, because that would notify them that was

         11  going to happen and potentially change how the staff

         12  or whomever interact.

         13                 And, the point of these surveys,

         14  among others, is to have a snapshot of what is

         15  happening in a City agency or in a service, or a

         16  situation in the City of New York, a snapshot in a

         17  moment in time, so we can draw from that.

         18                 We, when the investigators called,

         19  they called and ask questions as a woman who was

         20  seeking, just an every day New York woman might.  An

         21  every day New York woman, is not going to have,

         22  perhaps, the pharmaceutical language exactly right

         23  to ask the question.  In fact, our callers,

         24  probably, I would assume, and fairly confidently,

         25  that our callers asked the question in ways that was
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          2  more sophisticated then an average caller might

          3  otherwise have asked.

          4                 None of the women staff who made the

          5  calls ever reported they were rushed, or felt

          6  hurried by the call, by the folks at the other end

          7  of  the phone.  So that the idea that people were

          8  rushing to get back to help other customers was not,

          9  when we went back and looked over the questionnaire,

         10  spoke to the women who did it on the staff, that was

         11  never reported.

         12                 As it relates to calling, as what you

         13  said at the beginning of the month or the beginning

         14  of the week, a particular time, women are going to

         15  call when they need to call.  Women are gong to call

         16  when they have had an instance of unprotected sex or

         17  a birth control has failed, or where they have been

         18  a victim of a rape or sexual assault.

         19                 That cannot be timed, and what we

         20  need to make sure is that anytime someone called,

         21  you know, they would get a viable answer.  So, I do

         22  not think that is a fair criticism at all of the

         23  report.

         24                 And, as it relates to calling and

         25  asking for Prevent or Plan B, those are the two FDA
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          2  approved methods of emergency contraception, and our

          3  goal was to find out what the availability of those

          4  two FDA approved types were.  And, I think it is

          5  more responsible to survey about those two that the

          6  FDA have signed off on as oppose to another way of

          7  doing it.

          8                 MR. MANTELL:  First of all, emergency

          9  contraception was here before Plan B, and before

         10  Prevent, and taking doubling up on birth control

         11  pills for two doses, has been used for years.  So,

         12  most pharmacists are familiar with that.  Many

         13  pharmacists might not be familiar with Prevent or

         14  Plan B, because, these products are not promoted to

         15  sell reps to our pharmacies.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And that is the -

         17   -

         18                 MR. MANTELL:  The way the pharmacy

         19  stocks products, most of the time, is supply and

         20  demand.  When we have a prescription for a specific

         21  item, we order it right away.  Now, some pharmacy

         22  may not get the calls, and they will never get these

         23  calls.  Besides, there are many pharmacies, because

         24  of religious grounds, will not post that sign,

         25  because they do not carry those products.
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          2                 And, I think you are being punitive,

          3  by stigmatizing those pharmacies that after where

          4  some kind of a brand, or an R brand, saying that we

          5  do not carry EC products.  So,the punitive part is

          6  wrong.

          7                 I think education part of it, I think

          8  women have to be educated as well.  Because, as you

          9  mentioned in your introduction, that many women are

         10  not aware of these products.  We will be happy to

         11  help educate women and pharmacists, and get this

         12  message across to everybody.

         13                 And, a good decal, a very colorful

         14  decal, on the front of the store on the door, would

         15  let the women know even before she walks in, and

         16  starts looking for this sign, she might not even see

         17  it, and she going to say, o you have a sign that

         18  says that you do not carry EC?  She is already

         19  asking the question, she might as well ask, show me

         20  the prescription.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I think part of

         22  the point is also the signage.  And, again I just do

         23  not think that just a decal will work, because, you

         24  have to have some knowledge that it even exists.

         25                 Part of what this is about, is to
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          2  make sure, and this is another part of the survey,

          3  when our callers were calling, they actually were

          4  not in a time bound 72- hour situation, where if

          5  they did not find emergency contraception in 72

          6  hours, there would be a potentially be a significant

          7  problem.  But, when a woman who needs emergency

          8  contraception is going to call, that is much more

          9  going to be the case.

         10                 I think that partly you are right.

         11  Education is important and having those signs up,

         12  will help educate women about where in their

         13  community they can get emergency contraception, if

         14  they need it in an emergency situation, and where

         15  they cannot.

         16                 MR. MANTELL:  But, how would a women

         17  know to look for a sign?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well, I think if

         19  you are standing in line at the pharmacy to pick up

         20  your allergy medication, you are just going to look,

         21  it is going to be there.

         22                 MR. MANTELL:  What happens if the

         23  sign is on the opposite side of the counter?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Probably, you

         25  know, people will then turn around and leave with
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          2  their bag in hand to go to the cashier.

          3                 MR. MANTELL:  Why can't you let the

          4  women upon where she approaches the pharmacy, have a

          5  nice, beautiful, colorful, decal, and educate her to

          6  look for the decal?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I think the bill

          8  would allow the latitude to put the sign up front if

          9  you wanted to.  If the pharmacists thought that the

         10  better place to do it was right up front by the

         11  door, that would absolutely, you know that we could

         12  allow that type latitude.  But, the decal would have

         13  to be something you would need to know what it

         14  meant, as opposed to a few very clear words on a

         15  sign.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I am sorry,

         17  Council Member Lopez has a question?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Yes, I was

         19  just listening to you before, I am a signed member

         20  of this bill.  And, I was listening to what you were

         21  saying, trying to have consideration for the

         22  proposition that you were putting in place, in

         23  regard of notification, a proper way doing the

         24  survey, et cetera, et cetera.

         25                 And I was very much interested in
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          2  what you were saying, inclined to hear you more,

          3  until you mentioned that some pharmacists for

          4  religious reasons, would not post this bill.

          5                 I need you to clarify that point,

          6  please.

          7                 MR. MANTELL:   There are some

          8  pharmacists who do not carry oral contraceptives,

          9  because of their religious persuasion.            COUNCIL

         10  MEMBER LOPEZ:  Of who?

         11                 MR.MANTELL:  They will not carry

         12  birth - -

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Religious

         14  persuasion of who?

         15  The pharmacy have a belief - -

         16                 MR. MANTELL:  The Society of the

         17  State of New York, got a reprimand from St. John's

         18  College of Pharmacy, where we have supported 888.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  But, I asked

         20  you a question that specifically about a statement

         21  that you made, about religious belief of certain

         22  pharmacists.  That pharmacist, in our State have

         23  religious beliefs that prevent them from providing -

         24   -

         25                 MR. MANTELL:  That would oppose
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          2  carrying these products.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I am trying to

          4  understand, based on what, because in our City - -

          5                 MR. MANTELL:  Based on their

          6  religious beliefs, that they believe that emergency

          7  contraception, that destroying the impregnation

          8  could be against their belief.

          9                 I am not going to discuss the moral

         10  efficacy of their people.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Can I just

         12  interrupt, once again, to make sure that for the

         13  record.  As I said earlier, we, the Health

         14  Committees staff and myself, met with a

         15  representative of the Archbishop, the umbrella group

         16  for all the Catholic Hospitals in New York City, all

         17  of the Catholic Hospitals in New York City do

         18  provide emergency contraception in their emergency

         19  rooms.

         20                 So, I am not quite sure if it relates

         21  to that one religion that there is quite concern

         22  that might be being presented. Because, they do

         23  presently, provide emergency contraception in their

         24  emergency room.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  My question is
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          2  based on the statement made about pharmacists.  Are

          3  we talking about any pharmacists that are in our

          4  City?

          5                 MR. MANTELL:  We are talking about

          6  independent pharmacists, who run their business, and

          7  their operation they way they see fit according to

          8  their conscience and the State of Law of New York.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Then what we -

         10   -

         11                 MR. MANTELL:  The State Law of New

         12  York, does not compel a pharmacist to carry every

         13  single product.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  And I will - -

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Yes, but wait

         16  a moment, this is not about carrying every single

         17  product that is on the market. This is about

         18  establishing a religious belief, a personal

         19  religious belief, that I am not going to put this

         20  product in the market, because my religious beliefs

         21  said, that I am not going to allow the public to

         22  come and buy that products, because of my religious

         23  belief.  Is that what you are saying?

         24                 MR. MANTELL:  That is what I am

         25  saying.  That certain pharmacists feel strongly
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          2  about it, and the same thing about doctors that will

          3  not perform abortions.

          4                 I mean, it is a personal choice of a

          5  particular pharmacist, or a physician.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Thank you for

          7  clarifying this.

          8                 MR. MANTELL:  You are welcome

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I want to

         10  suggest that at this moment, the Council look

         11  further into this issue about pharmacies

         12  establishing religious belief of personal

         13  orientation, based on the product that they sells to

         14  the public.  And how many other religious beliefs

         15  are out there, for example, with condoms?

         16  How many other religious beliefs are out there that

         17  are dictating product being sold by pharmacies in

         18  our City, violating the rights of people to have

         19  access to those products?

         20                 MR. MANTELL:  Ms. Lopez, - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Actually, she was

         22  not asking a question, she was just making a

         23  statement to the Chair.

         24                 MR. MANTELL:  Madam Chair, I would

         25  like to address one issue.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  No, I am sorry,

          3  we are going to call on the next Council member who

          4  has a question.  I think Council Member Lopez was

          5  done.

          6                 MR. MANTELL:  It is an important

          7  issue, that I want to address.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I am sorry.  She

          9  was not actually asking a question, she was just so

         10   - -

         11                 Council Member Sears.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair. Obviously, this is a very delicate

         14  issue for you.  However, it seems to me, that

         15  pharmacies have a responsibility, and that

         16  responsibility is to provide for the well being of

         17  the residents in their communities.

         18                 That means they provide medications,

         19  they provide baby medications, they actually have

         20  even given advise, as to how and what to do to get

         21  temperatures down.

         22                 Emergency contraceptive, fits very

         23  much into that spot.  Religion has nothing to do

         24  with how the health, the well being, of a woman or a

         25  man, is taken care of.  One of the highest, fastest
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          2  growing problems in the City of New York, is rape.

          3  It is rape, I do not know if you are aware if that.

          4  But, if you get statistics from precincts in the

          5  City of New York, we have other things that are

          6  down, and rape is up.

          7                 It seems, that if, it is also a

          8  responsibility of

          9  government, to recognize the sensitivity, but, to

         10  have the courage and the strength to separate what

         11  you are speaking about, Sir, and look for the common

         12  good for the people of the City of New York.

         13                 Here we are speaking predominately

         14  about women, but men are so as well, fit into this

         15  category, because men are raped as well women, not

         16  to the extent that women are.  And, I do not

         17  understand why there is an objection, to educating,

         18  through that people in a community, because people

         19  use their local pharmacies, unless they are

         20  somewhere and they have to go to a strange one.

         21                 What there is in providing

         22  information that in meeting the responsibilities,

         23  and not casting any opinions, whether it is morally

         24  right, or morally wrong, to do so.  To make that

         25  knowledge available to those who come into you, and
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          2  seek to buy these things.

          3                 We are not talking about what is

          4  morally right and what is morally wrong, because

          5  that is a responsibility of the individuals.

          6  Government does not establish morality for anybody,

          7  and I do not believe we do that.  And, I think that

          8  you are misconstruing that very thing.

          9                 We have a responsibility to make

         10  available and to provide for the people their health

         11  needs, to provide safety, and not to pass any

         12  judgement.  Morality is based, it is for the

         13  individuals, and for their own religious beliefs.

         14  Because, something is made available, and someone

         15  feels so strongly about it, they do not have to

         16  avail themselves of it.

         17                 I disagree with you.  I think you, as

         18  a pharmacist, have a responsibility to people, and

         19  to your patients who come in not to deprive them,

         20  because of moral restrictions, of what may be

         21  available to them, for their physical being as well

         22  as their emotional well being.

         23                 I disagree with you, and I am sorry

         24  that you have position.

         25                 MR. MANTELL:  No, my position - -
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  You are

          3  licensed by the State of New York, you are putting

          4  products in your store, in your business, that are

          5  there to take care and help people with their needs.

          6    That is one of them, and you are beginning to pick

          7  and choose exactly what you put in your store, when

          8  you are licensed by the City of New York to provide

          9  for the people who need their prescriptions filled,

         10  and who need everything else that is above the

         11  counter.

         12                 I disagree with you, I really do.

         13                 MR. MANTELL:  I think that you must

         14  have misunderstood me, and Ms. Lopez misunderstood

         15  me as well.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I do not know,

         17  we heard you.

         18                 MR. MANTELL:  I am saying the 99

         19  percent of the pharmacies carry most of the

         20  products.  There is a percentage of pharmacy, maybe

         21  one, maybe half, I do not know the answer to that,

         22  Who could, might object to this particular

         23  situation.

         24                 However, we are providing help to the

         25  communities. We are the most readily available
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          2  professionals in the communities. You do not need an

          3  appointment to come to see us.  Many of us are open

          4  7 days a weeks, and there are some people, for

          5  religious reasons close on Saturdays or Sundays.

          6  So, there is that factor. Would you force them to be

          7  open seven days a week?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Oh, nobody is

          9  saying - -

         10                 MR. MANTELL:  Well, well, this

         11  implication is that a pharmacist's religious is not

         12  being considered.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  You know what,

         14  you are stretching, stretching the boundaries.  You

         15  are talking about something entirely different--

         16                 MR. MANTELL:  We are talking about -

         17   -

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: - -  is it is

         19  your --

         20                 MR. MANTELL:   We are talking about,

         21  we are talking about, Ms. Lopez position here.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: - -  if you are

         23  open six days a week, and you are closed on a

         24  Saturday, this bill is not saying that you have to

         25  be open on a Saturday..  That is a very poor
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          2  argument, and no one, I can tell you no one, on this

          3  Committee, or in this Council, is insensitive to

          4  religious beliefs, to moral beliefs, they are not

          5  insensitive to that, and you should recognize that.

          6  Certainly, no one sitting here, is insensitive to

          7  people's religious beliefs.

          8                 However, I think that you are

          9  absolutely, distorting, you should say that it is

         10  there or it is not there. And, I can tell you, you

         11  put a decal somewhere, people have to get up there,

         12  they have to look at the small print, it just does

         13  not work.  A sign over your cash register, or

         14  anyone's, where they check out, that something is

         15  available, or it is not, is not a terrible thing to

         16  do, it is not.

         17                 MR. MANTELL:  A sign over a cash

         18  register does not answer this question.  Because,

         19  usually the prescriptions are taken out at the other

         20  end of the counter.  If a woman is standing at the

         21  other end of the counter, so physically speaking, a

         22  sign in the pharmacy could be anywhere, as near as

         23  the pharmacy counter, a woman will not necessarily

         24  notice it.  And, unless she is going to be educated

         25  to look for it, she is not going to spot it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  But, you know,

          3  the education is up to you.  It is your business,

          4  and you have a responsibility to provide to the

          5  people who come into your place of business, to make

          6  what is available, in whatever way you have do it.

          7  And, knowing your place, and your business, and your

          8  shelves, you darn well can know what is the best

          9  place to place any sign that is going to help your

         10  patients and your customers who come into that

         11  store.  I thing that your argument is weak and

         12  absurd.

         13                 MR. MANTELL:  Absolutely not.  How

         14  many signs do you expect the pharmacy to have every

         15  time an advocate group comes out. Next time we are

         16  going to have a sign that says we do not carry

         17  fertility drugs, or put up a sign that we do not

         18  carry diaphragms, or put up a sign that we do not

         19  carry HIV drugs, or put up a sign that we have a

         20  price poster, and how many signs do you expect us to

         21  have?  When is it going to end?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  This is - -

         23                 MR. MANTELL:  Why is my argument

         24  weak?  My record, my argument is correct.  Because,

         25  all you want is put up more and more signs, and
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          2  every time an advocate group comes up, instead of

          3  working with us, you are punishing us.  Instead of

          4  us helping you educate patients, you are fighting

          5  us.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Councilwoman.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  We need signs

          8   - -

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  Can I make a

         10  clarification?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Let's let Council

         12  Member Sears finish.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: - -  as long as

         14  things happen is society - -

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I am - -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: - -  and you

         17  have a responsibility to meet whatever those

         18  offenses are in society, and if it means, you have

         19  got to have 50 signs in your place of business,

         20  because of the offenses in this society are growing

         21  and growing, you have a responsibility to do that.

         22                 MR. MANTELL:  I disagree with you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  If it is

         24  inconvenient to you or not, you still have a

         25  responsibility.
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          2                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you.

          4                 Council Member Lopez, and then

          5  Council Member Stewart.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I just want to

          7  clarify the following thing.  Madam Chair, if

          8  somebody has, as an owner of a store, a religious

          9  belief that impaired them from selling this

         10  particular product, then I guess that the argument

         11  should be that the should be happy to have the sign,

         12  because the sign will make clear to the public that

         13  they are in respect to their religious belief, and

         14  that, therefore, people should know what the

         15  religious belief is, in order to put this sign in

         16  place will guarantee the moral compliance with a

         17  belief, and a consumer will know that. Therefore,

         18  the argument should be in the other direction.

         19                 And, I did not misunderstood your

         20  statement.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  I think that is a

         22  very logical point, Council Member Lopez.

         23                 I just want to say, a very logical

         24  point, before I call on Council Member Stewart.

         25                 Your opposition to the bill seems to
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          2  shift.  On one hand you say it is punitive, it is

          3  unfair, it is unfair pharmacists that have a

          4  religious objection, et cetera.

          5                 But, then on the other hand, you say

          6  it is not strong enough, because the signs may not

          7  be clear enough.

          8                 So, I think, that the fact that, on

          9  one hand you say one thing in your opposition, then

         10  on the other hand, you would say, another think in

         11  your opposition is, - -

         12                 MR. MANTELL:  I am - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:- -  I think,

         14  partially why your argument ends up as Council

         15  Member Sears says, weak.

         16                 Council, yes.

         17                 MR. MANTELL:  Ms. Chair, I am being

         18  consistent. Signs in the prescription department

         19  area are cluttering our pharmacy.  We are getting

         20  too many signs as it is.

         21                 I think a decal like the ESAP

         22  program, a colorful decal, and you can pick the size

         23  and colors, and make it as promoting as the lady

         24  from Planned Parenthood, had a beautiful button

         25  here, talking about EC.  I think, that kind of decal
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          2  and educating the women about it would be much more

          3  helpful and let us help you guys educate the public.

          4

          5                 We have been, the pharmacists, always

          6  in the gallop polls, came out to be the most trusted

          7  professionals, over, and over, and over again.  And,

          8  you can look where the politicians are on that

          9  gallop poll.

         10                 MR. SCHEER:  The other thing, I just

         11  might want to bring up, is the fact - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well, that

         13  actually was incredibly, unhelpful, to any case you

         14  might have been making. Because, an extremely

         15  offensive.

         16                 MR. MANTELL:  It is a fact.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well, okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  So, it is a fact,

         19  then?

         20                 MR. MANTELL:  It is a fact, yes, it

         21  is.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  So, since you

         23  just - -

         24                 MR. MANTELL:  Yes, it is, and I will

         25  prove it to you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay, great.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  We should vote

          4  this bill, right now.

          5                 MR. MANTELL:  Go ahead.

          6                 MR. SCHEER:  No, could I just say

          7  something?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Well, if you are

          9  going to further insult politicians, I would leave

         10  it out.

         11                 MR. SCHEER:  No, I am not trying to

         12  insult politicians.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Okay.

         14                 MR. SCHEER:  What I am just trying to

         15  say is, if there is a small percentage, we are

         16  saying, who do not take it.  We are not educating

         17  the general public, we are actually educating a

         18  minority, because they are the ones, they are not

         19  going to all, you know, there is a small percentage,

         20  that do not, that are not going to have it.

         21                 It would be better to have a positive

         22  measure, as oppose to a negative measure, to promote

         23  the fact that it is carried.  Do you see what I am

         24  getting at?  And, that is where, I think, Mr.

         25  Mantell is trying to say.  He may not have said it
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          2  correctly.  But, that is what I think we are more

          3  saying, and, that is why I am calling the punitive

          4  part of it, is the fact that, it is a negative

          5  connotation, as Commissioner Frieden said, too.  He

          6  said, he wants, you should be promoting it, not

          7  trying to penalize someone for not having a sign up

          8  saying that they do not carry it.

          9                 But, the fact is, if it just a small

         10  percentage that do not carry it, how are we going to

         11  educate the general public? I do not think that it

         12  will get across the general public, because most of

         13  them will not go to that pharmacy.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Two points, then

         15  I am calling Council Member Stewart.

         16                 One is, tragically, it does not seem

         17  like, from our study, it seems like far more do not

         18  carry it.  Seventy percent in Queens do not carry

         19  it, as oppose to 30 that do.

         20                 There is no quick way to do education

         21  on any health issues, and given the lack of

         22  knowledge, unfortunately, about emergency

         23  contraception in the United States, there will be no

         24  quick way.  And, that is why, if you look at these

         25  bills, there is one that deals with private
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          2  pharmacies, there is one that deals with our Public

          3  Health Clinics, there was one that deals hospitals

          4  and women who have been raped.

          5                 So, part of the reason why there is

          6  package of legislation here that touches on health

          7  care, and how women interact with health care in

          8  three different ways, is in recognition of that need

          9  for education, that you have to kind of reinforce

         10  information about the availability of emergency

         11  contraception, repeatedly, and over and over, in

         12  different places.             So, now, if this bill

         13  is law, our STD Clinics will not only have all this

         14  information, I would assume they are saying, that

         15  you can get this there.  The Counselors, as

         16  Commissioner Frieden said, will raise this to women.

         17                 So, I think it is an accumulative

         18  process, that added on to the tremendous amount of

         19  work that is already being done by the advocates,

         20  who we have heard from.

         21                 Council Member Stewart.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Thank you,

         23  Madam Chair.  I am still confused about what some of

         24  the witnesses have been saying.  Based on what I

         25  have been hearing, we have laws right now that every
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          2  building based on size and criteria, must carry fire

          3  extinguishers.  And, the owners of those buildings

          4  are not crying out saying, that, listen I do not

          5  want to carry it because of some other extraneous,

          6  some reason.

          7                 Now, if someone, what we are really

          8  trying to do is to have everyone carry the EC.  If

          9  someone is not going to carry it, and they should

         10  have been carrying it, we say, all you need to do is

         11  put up a sign.  If you carry it already, then you do

         12  not need to worry about a sign.

         13                 Because, if someone goes to that

         14  pharmacy, or he might be waiting on that pharmacy,

         15  so he will wait until the next morning, or whatever,

         16  to go to the pharmacy.  You want to know that you

         17  can go to that pharmacy, and you can see right away,

         18  that you have, you can get your prescription as you

         19  want it.

         20                 Instead of going there, and standing

         21  in line for a long time, and then find out that they

         22  do not carry it, and then you have to go to another

         23  pharmacy some place else, and then go through the

         24  same process.

         25                 What we are saying, is that, if you
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          2  do not carry it, put up the sign.  If you are

          3  carrying it, you do not need to worry about the

          4  sign.  So, it does not have anything to do with

          5  religion, if you are religious and you do not want

          6  to carry the product, fine, but just put up the

          7  sign.  That is how I see it.

          8                 MR. SCHEER:  The only thing that I

          9  see is again, how are the people going to be

         10  notified, that this, if they do not go into a

         11  pharmacy that doesn't carry it, they are never going

         12  to see this sign, so how are they going to know

         13  there is an access problem, or there's an access

         14  problem, they are going into the same pharmacy, they

         15  are going into the regular pharmacy, in the same

         16  kind of fashion, in a blind fashion.

         17                 The reason we suggested the decal,

         18  and the program he had worked up with ESAP, was,

         19  because, it took the onerous off the person having

         20  to ask.  It was already notified that they were of

         21  this network, and they would not put any

         22  predisposition on that person coming in and asking

         23  for something, because they were participating in a

         24  program.

         25                 And, again, that is a positive way to
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          2  allow people to come in and not feel in any way

          3  tremulous, or afraid, to ask whether or not

          4  something is carried, or to feel that they are being

          5  looked at in a special way.

          6                 If someone is carrying something,

          7  they should know that this person is aware of the

          8  situation and has a predisposition

          9  to trying to get them what they want as soon as

         10  possible.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Yes, but you

         12  are talking about a decal and a sign.

         13                 MR. SCHEER:  The decal - -

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  They are

         15  basically the same

         16  thing, except just that the sign tells you

         17  specifically what to do.

         18                 MR SCHEER:  It is a negative sign. It

         19  is a negative sign.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:   Why is - -

         21                 MR. SCHEER:  It is a negative saying

         22  that we do not carry it, as opposed to a positive

         23  sign, which means that if they go into a regular

         24  pharmacy, they are not, they may not see the

         25  negative sign at some point.
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          2                 Say it is in 20 to 30 percent of the

          3  pharmacies, at some point, and let me tell you

          4  something, if there is a momentum in carrying this,

          5  pharmacies who are in community base, are business

          6  people, and they will carry a product that is going

          7  to move, they are not going to carry something, if

          8  they have heard about something, they are going to

          9  be carrying it.

         10                 In all that I am saying is, I think

         11  it needs a more positive note, as opposed to a

         12  negative note, in that you want to get more of the

         13  people aware of this, and this is an educational

         14  process, and having something that would say, hey,

         15  you are free to come into this place, because this

         16  place does carry what you need. I think that is more

         17  of a positive influence, and it is also going to

         18  expand the knowledge.

         19                 Again, it needs education, I agree

         20  with you.  I think that is severely lacking in this,

         21  but I think that is something that is more

         22  beneficial to the patient.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So, you are

         24  saying your argument should be, we should be forcing

         25  the pharmacies that carry it, to say that they carry
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          2  it?  Is that what you are saying?

          3                 MR. SCHEER:  Or putting a sign, or

          4  putting a decal on the door as part of a network or

          5  something like that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  No.  Our

          7  method we want to have the people who are not

          8  carrying it, do something.  And to avoid putting up

          9  a sign, you carry it.  That is what they want.

         10                 MR. SCHEER:  But then it does not

         11  educate them. That is my point.  Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 MR. MANTELL:  Let me just add one

         15  more thing.  New York State law does not require a

         16  pharmacist to carry every single product.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So many

         19  pharmacies who do not get a demand for it, will not

         20  carry it.  Because, these things do have an

         21  expiration date, all the drugs do have expiration

         22  dates. And the returning product to manufacturers is

         23  a task.  So, pharmacies will carry based on their

         24  movement of the product, and we have been, and our

         25  interest is to sell it, to  have it available, to
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          2  educate the people.  This is our interest.

          3                 So, a positive step, is having a

          4  decal that we advertise, yes, we carry EC products,

          5  and to have outside is even better, because a woman,

          6  as she is parking the car, she sees the decal, and

          7  she says, oh, they have it, and if she doesn't see

          8  the decal, she will move on.

          9                 Otherwise, she has to park the car

         10  and go inside and find out that there is a sign,

         11  come outside again, and go and look for another

         12  pharmacy.  So we are looking for a positive way of

         13  doing this, and helping implement this, and

         14  educating our pharmacists who are not aware of this,

         15  and women, too.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you very

         17  much.  Thank you.

         18                 If I could now ask the clerk to call

         19  the roll please.  We are going to vote on all three

         20  pieces of the legislation.

         21                 I just want to say, that I want to

         22  thank the Committee, and all the staff to the

         23  Committee, as well as the staff of the Oversight and

         24  Investigations Division, and also the staff to the

         25  Contract Committee, whom have pinched hit and helped
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          2  us on the hospital bill, Rob Newman, Judith

          3  Macfarlane, Wayne Cooglar (phonetic), Lucy Maio,

          4  Sara Foreman, of the Investigation

          5  Division, Chris Winward, who works for the Council's

          6  Health Committee, for all of their work on these

          7  three pieces of legislation.

          8                 I think that, you know, it is very

          9  important that the Council pass these three pieces

         10  of legislation now, as I have said, there is an

         11  unbelievable lack of knowledge of emergency

         12  contraception in this City, and in this Country,

         13  rapes are continuing to rise in this Country, and we

         14  can not let even in this budget time, women's health

         15  care fail to move forward, and actually, I would

         16  argue by not doing this, even move backwards.

         17                 The bills have been amended to make

         18  sure they track as tightly as possible with State

         19  protocol, with State laws, the STD Clinic Bill has a

         20  120- day time frame to begin after it is signed, or

         21  the veto is overridden, or whatever, it gives us

         22  time to monitor the implementation of this bill in

         23  the budget negotiations to make sure that

         24  inappropriately services not be pitted against each

         25  other.  And I remain confident that the cost of the
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          2  bill will probably be even less then the $750,000 we

          3  envision, and confident that we will be able to find

          4  that small amount money in a $49 billion budget, as

          5  we monitor the implementation of this law, in next

          6  year's fiscal year.

          7                 That said, I vote aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Clarke.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE:  Madam Chair,

         10  may I be excused to explain my vote?  Thank you.

         11                 It is very important legislation that

         12  is before us today, and I have heard the arguments

         13  on all sides.  However, in this equation, and all of

         14  the discussion I have heard, the human factor has

         15  really just been dropped out of the process.  And, I

         16  think that the perspective of women, and what we,

         17  the challenges that we face has been really

         18  minimized by so over riding interest that are not

         19  ours.

         20                 Let me just state that in a City like

         21  ours with such a very large population of immigrant

         22  women, many of whom are vulnerable victims in this

         23  City, to abuse, physically, mentally, and sexually,

         24  these measures can provide relief and support and

         25  the ability to regain their dignity and their
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          2  humanity, at what I believe is really a minimal cost

          3  to our budget.

          4                 Unwanted pregnancies, in our society

          5  become unwanted children.  What cost or dollar

          6  figure can we put on those social services and

          7  governmental entities, that are burden by unwanted,

          8  abused, and neglected and forgotten children, not to

          9  pass this legislation, is penny- wise and pound-

         10  foolish.

         11                 I think that it is shameful for us to

         12  sit here knowing the consequences of not

         13  implementing this program, because we have not

         14  exhausted every effort to protect the well being of

         15  our citizenry.

         16                 I would like to suggest, and see that

         17  efforts be made by the Department of Health and

         18  Mental Hygiene, to reach out to pharmaceutical

         19  companies and pharmacies, and other private sector

         20  entities, to leverage our tax levy dollars to ensure

         21  the success of this project.

         22                 I think that it is in the interest of

         23  the pharmacies, that do not have whatever objections

         24  to the sale and distribution of these very much

         25  needed EC's, to become partners with us in the
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          2  educating and getting the word out in our

          3  communities, as well as the pharmaceutical

          4  companies.  And, I know, that for them, there will

          5  be a greater financial benefit.

          6                 And then, finally, the argument about

          7  negative signs.  I do not buy it.  When I go into

          8  pharmacies across the board, be it a chain or mom

          9  and pop, the first negative sign that hits me, and

         10  it was because of the public health interest of our

         11  society, is that we do not sell cigarettes to

         12  children under the age of 18.  So, you know, this is

         13  a wide sweeping across the board negative statement

         14  for children under 18.  We recognize why that has to

         15  be.

         16                 Likewise, this is a life saving

         17  measure for many women, for many in our society, and

         18  for communities that do not have the type protective

         19  safety net that many around the City do have.  I

         20  think that this is a very important piece, it is on

         21  cheap to be quite honest with you, and I think now

         22  is the time to get it done.

         23                 I vote aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  One of the
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          2  very strong comments that was made, that these bills

          3  are going to be monitored very carefully.  And, that

          4  monitoring is not in an punitive measure, and only

          5  is it with compliance, but, also to embrace the

          6  arguments that have been proposed against that.

          7                 And, that monitoring is, in a

          8  sensitive way, to see exactly how those arguments

          9  are effecting this, and how this legislation effects

         10  those arguments.  And, with that, that comfort, that

         11  this monitoring embraces all the arguments we heard

         12  today.

         13                 I vote aye on all three, and I think

         14  that you will find us very cooperative, in that

         15  sense, and the sensitivities that you have

         16  expressed.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Stewart.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  May I be

         19  excused to explain my vote?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  I can safely

         22  say that this is a win/win for families, for women,

         23  and also cost saving to the City's budget itself.

         24  EC is a program for the poor, and the indigent, and

         25  the voiceless.  I am convinced that there is no
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          2  legitimate reasons why these laws and programs can

          3  not be implemented.  There is more to gain then to

          4  lose in implementing these laws and programs.

          5                 And, in that vein, I vote aye to all

          6  three.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vann.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  May I explain

         10  my vote, Madam Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Yes, of course.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  I, too, agree

         13  with the goals of these three pieces of legislation,

         14  and, would like to support each and every one of

         15  them.  I represent the Community of Bedford

         16  Stuyvesant, Community which I am very proud, and

         17  they have a lot to offer, a Community of my birth,

         18  quite frankly.

         19                 But, we also have some things that I

         20  am not proud of, and that is, we probably top the

         21  list, or at the top of the list of all the indices

         22  of ill health, if you will.  Whether it is

         23  infectious diseases, or HIV, asthma, high blood

         24  pressure, you name it, unfortunately, we are there.

         25  And, so you can understand my concern, when the
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          2  Commissioner raises the prospect that to do this, we

          3  may not be able to do that.  But, on your

          4  assurances, that we will not allow that to occur, I

          5  am able to vote aye on all.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN:  Thank you, very

          7  much.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote 5 in the

          9  affirmative, 0 in the negative, and no abstentions,

         10  all items are adopted.  Council members please sign

         11  Committee report, and vote will be held open.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 (Hearing adjourned at 12:22 p.m.)
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